
TOWN OF SEABROOK ISLAND 
Town Council Work Session 
August 9, 2022 – 1:00PM  

Town Hall, Council Chambers 
2001 Seabrook Island Road 
Seabrook Island, SC 29455 

Watch Live Stream (YouTube) 

Virtual Participation: Individuals who wish to participate in the meeting via Zoom may call (843) 768-9121 
or email kwatkins@townofseabrookisland.org for log-in information prior to the meeting.  

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order – Roll Call – Freedom of Information

2. Mayor John Gregg

• Update on Town’s Recertification for Community Rating System
• Update Concerning Publication of Draft Changes to Charleston Regional Hazard

Mitigation Plan 
• Update Concerning Proposed Development (Andell Bluff)

3. Town Council Members:
• Jeri Finke
• Patricia Fox
• Barry Goldstein
• Dan Kortvelesy

4. Town Administrator Joe Cronin

• Request to Take Vehicles on the Beach
• Contract for Design Services Related to Town Hall Expansion

5. Adjourn
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Joe Cronin

From: Heather Paton <hpaton@sipoa.org>
Sent: Friday, August 5, 2022 3:06 PM
To: Sam Smoak; Joe Cronin
Cc: Katrina Burrell; Steve Hirsch
Subject: Beach access for revetment repairs at 3742 Seabrook Island Rd.

Good afternoon, Sam, 
 
SIPOA has granted permission for Charleston Green to access the beach to repair the revetment wall at 3742 
Seabrook Island Rd. 
 
The contractor can access the beach via the roadway at BW1 and travel to the project site.  The property owners 
at 3764 have agreed to allow use of their property as a staging area.  Per instructions from SCDNR, daily beach 
access to the project site must be coordinated with the Seabrook Island Turtle Patrol. 
 
The contractor is responsible for repairing any damage to the roadway, concrete curb or beach trust resulting 
from the transport of granite stone or other equipment to the project site. A SIPOA ARC permit is also required 
prior to commencement of work.   
 
Heather 
 
 
Heather Paton, MCM, CMCA, LSM, PCAM 
Executive Director 
Seabrook Island Property Owners Association 
1202 Landfall Way 
Johns Island, SC 29455 
843.768.0061 
843.768.4317 FAX 

 
 



 
 

BBC Natural History and Factual Productions Ltd is a subsidiary of the BBC 
Company Registered in England and Wales No: 10378537 

BBC VAT registration number: GB 333 2894 54 
 

Wednesday 3rd August 2022 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
RE: BBC filming permission request 
 
I am writing to you from the BBC’s Natural History Unit as we will be sending a small crew of 7 
people (which includes 2 x skippers) to film dolphin stranding behaviour for a new blue-chip natural 
history documentary series in South Carolina in September 2022. 
 
We would like to request filming permissions including drone use on Seabrook Island as well as 
permission to take a vehicle onto the beach to enable us to transport various pieces of kit to filming 
spots. 
 
Our intended filming period is from the 5th-23rd September 2022 and further details of the vehicle we 
would like to be able to access the beach are below: 
 

• We will only require vehicle beach access on Seabrook for a handful of days within the total 
shoot period and filming will be in daylight hours, likely 2 hours either side of low tide. 

• The purpose of taking the vehicle onto the beach is to be able to transport our kit to spots 
where we would be able to film the dolphin behaviour from the shore. 

• The vehicle to be used is a 2022 Jeep Gladiator 4x4. 

• Scott Snider – a local camera operator – will be operating the vehicle, his contact number is  
843-297-6849 and a copy of his driver licence and vehicle insurance is attached with this 
letter. Scott is based at Folly Beach and is very familiar with filming in the area and the beach 
at Seabrook, having used it in the past for access for filming. 

• We acknowledge the requirements of Sec. 32-42(b) of the Town Code for the general 
requirements for vehicles on the beach, as sent via email on 25th July 2022. 

 
If you require any further details or information please do let me know.  
 
Kind regards,  
 
 
 

Izzi Tippetts  

 

Production Co-ordinator 

NATURAL HISTORY UNIT 
 

Tel: +44 (0)7583 347222 

Email: izzi.tippetts@bbc.co.uk  

 

mailto:izzi.tippetts@bbc.co.uk
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Joe Cronin

From: Joe Cronin
Sent: Monday, July 25, 2022 1:25 PM
To: Izzi Tippetts
Cc: Katharin Gilbert; Vicky Webb; Louise Britton; Sheryl Bawden
Subject: RE: BBC series - Seabrook filming permissions for September 2022

Hi Izzi, 
 
As a follow up to our conversation, I have included a copy of our ordinance pertaining to vehicles on the beach below. 
 
You may submit a request in writing on company letterhead. The letter should include each of the following: 
 

 The dates and times the vehicle will be used 

 The purpose(s) for which the vehicle will be used 

 The make and model of the vehicle to be used (please note the vehicle must be equipped with four‐wheel drive) 

 The name and contact information of the person (or persons) who will operate the vehicle, along with a copy of 
the person’s driver’s license and liability insurance.  

 An acknowledgement of the requirements of Sec. 32‐42(b) of the Town Code, outlining the general 
requirements for vehicles on the beach 

 
Ordinance requirements: 
 

Sec. 32‐42. – Vehicle Use.             
 

(a) Motor vehicles of any type or kind shall not be driven or operated on the beaches of Seabrook Island, 
except for those expressly authorized below: 
 

(1) Vehicles operated by an official or employee of any municipal, county, state or federal agency,
department or unit;  
 

(2) Vehicles operated by an official or employee of any bona fide public safety agency, including, but 
not  limited  to,  law enforcement,  code enforcement,  fire  suppression and emergency medical
services; 
 

(3) Vehicles operated by an official or employee of any contractor, agency or entity providing goods
or services on the beach under contract with or at the request of the town;  
 

(4) Vehicles operated by an official or employee of the following community organizations which are 
necessary for the performance of maintenance services, the provision of security services and/or
the transportation of personnel and equipment on behalf of the organization: 
 

a. Seabrook Island Property Owners Association 
 

b. Seabrook Island Club; 
 

c. Seabrook Island Turtle Patrol; 
 

d. Seabrook Island Utility Commission; 



2

 
e. St. Christopher Camp and Conference Center;  

 
(5) Small open motorized vehicles and medical devices may be operated by, or for the benefit of,

individuals who have a physical or mental disability which i) is recognized by state or federal law,
and ii) which would otherwise preclude their use and enjoyment of the beach; 
 

(6) Class 1 pedal‐assist electric bicycles which are duly permitted by the Seabrook  Island Property
Owners Association for use within the Seabrook  Island Development and which display a valid
SIPOA decal while operating on the beach. For the purposes of this section, “class 1 pedal‐assist 
electric bicycles”  shall have  the  same meaning  as  “electric‐assist bicycles”  and  “bicycles with 
helper motors,” as defined in Sec. 56‐1‐10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws; and 
 

(7) Any other vehicles deemed essential by the town and duly operating under one of the following
types of special vehicle use permits:  

 
a. Standard vehicle use permits. Standard vehicle use permit requests shall be submitted to

the  town administrator  in writing no  less  than  thirty  (30) days prior  to  the date upon
which  the  applicant  seeks  to  use  a  vehicle  on  the  beach.  Permit  requests  shall  be
forwarded by the town administrator to the town council for consideration at the next
available town council meeting. If the town council determines that the use of a vehicle
is essential to the applicant’s  intended purpose, then  it may approve the  issuance of a
permit by resolution. In approving a permit, the town council may attach such reasonable
conditions as it deems necessary to protect public health and safety.  
 

b. Emergency permits. Emergency vehicle use permit requests shall be made to the town
administrator,  either  verbally  or  in  writing,  as  soon  as  practicable.  If  the  town
administrator determines that the use of a vehicle is necessary to mitigate an immediate
threat to public health and safety, he or she may authorize a permit, either verbally or in
writing.  In  approving  a  permit,  the  town  administrator may  attach  such  reasonable
conditions as he or she deems necessary to protect public health and safety. 

 
(b) Except in cases of an emergency, vehicles which are authorized to be driven or operated on the beach

pursuant to this section shall comply with the following requirements at all times: 
 

(1) Vehicles  shall  be  operated  in  such  a manner  so  as  not  to  endanger  or  unreasonably  disturb 
beachgoers, wildlife or marine life, and designated critical habitat areas, including shorebird and
turtle nesting areas; 
 

(2) Vehicles shall not exceed a speed of ten (10) miles per hour when operated on the beach; 
 

(3) Vehicles shall be operated on the wet sand; vehicles may not be operated on dry sand except to
gain access to the wet sand; 

 
(4) Vehicles shall not be driven onto or within any dune or vegetated area;  

 
(5)  Vehicles shall enter the beach only from authorized access points; and 

 
(6) All vehicles being operated on the beach, excluding those specified in subsections (a)(5) and (a)(6),

shall be equipped with four‐wheel drive.  
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Joseph M. Cronin 
Town Administrator 
Town of Seabrook Island 
2001 Seabrook Island Road 
Seabrook Island, SC 29455 
Office: (843) 768‐5321 
www.townofseabrookisland.org  
 

From: Izzi Tippetts <izzi.tippetts@bbc.co.uk>  
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2022 8:20 AM 
To: Joe Cronin <jcronin@townofseabrookisland.org> 
Cc: Katharin Gilbert <katharin.gilbert@bbc.co.uk>; Vicky Webb <vicky.webb@bbc.co.uk>; Louise Britton 
<louise.britton@bbc.co.uk>; Sheryl Bawden <sheryl.bawden@bbc.co.uk> 
Subject: RE: BBC series ‐ Seabrook filming permissions for September 2022 
 
Hi Joe, 
 
I’m just getting in touch as Sheryl is now on leave for a few weeks, so I just wanted to follow up on her email below 
regarding filming permissions including drone use on Seabrook Island and taking vehicles onto the beach. 
 
If you’re able to get back to me when possible to let me know what permits are required and what that process is I 
would be really grateful as we would like to get any applications in as soon as possible in time for our shoot planned for 
September. 
 
Thanks so much in advance, 
Izzi 
 
Izzi Tippetts | Production Coordinator  
NATURAL HISTORY UNIT | BBC STUDIOS 
 

07583347222 izzi.tippetts@bbc.co.uk   

  Bridgewater House – Counterslip – Bristol – BS1 6BX 

 
 

From: Sheryl Bawden <sheryl.bawden@bbc.co.uk>  
Sent: 20 July 2022 18:26 
To: jcronin@townofseabrookisland.org 
Cc: Katharin Gilbert <katharin.gilbert@bbc.co.uk>; Izzi Tippetts <izzi.tippetts@bbc.co.uk>; Vicky Webb 
<vicky.webb@bbc.co.uk>; Louise Britton <louise.britton@bbc.co.uk> 
Subject: BBC series ‐ Seabrook filming permissions for September 2022 
 
Dear Joe, 

I hope this email finds you well and you don’t mind me emailing you out of the blue. 

I work at the BBC Natural History Unit and we are producing a new landmark TV series, which explores how animals 
overcome the everyday challenges of life. 

One of our episodes explores novel ways of hunting and we are filming the strand feeding behaviour of South Carolina’s 
bottlenose dolphins as an archetypal example of this.  
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We’re working with Lauren Rust of the LMMN and I wanted to get in touch with you to ask about filming permissions 
including drone use on Seabrook island and whether we might be able to get permission to take vehicles onto the beach 
which would enable us to transport various pieces of kit to filming spots.  
I’d also really appreciate it if you can provide any advice on any other permissions we may need to seek in order to 
achieve our filming goals – we currently have a permit application in with NOAA to film the behaviour. 
 
We anticipate filming to occur for 3 weeks within the timeframe of 5th September – 9th October 2022. 
 
Please let me know your thoughts and I’d be very happy to set up a zoom call to discuss further. 
 
Best wishes 
 
Sheryl 
 

Sheryl Bawden 
 
Assistant Producer – Project Dolphin 
BBC NATURAL HISTORY UNIT 
 

• • • • • 
 

Tel: +44 (0)303 082 1658  
Sheryl.Bawden@bbc.co.uk  
BBC Studios, Bridgewater House , Counterslip, Bristol, BS1 6BX 

 

 
 
This email, including attachments, is private and confidential and may contain personal views which are not the views of 
the Company unless specifically stated. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it 
from your system. Any commercial terms contained in this e‐mail or any attachments are for discussion purposes only, 
and do not constitute a legal agreement. No binding agreement will exist unless and until written execution of a long 
form contract signed by all parties to the agreement. Please note that the Company monitors e‐mails sent or received. 
Further communication will signify your consent to this.  
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